BARRY ALLAN WILLIAMS,

Petitioner,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

CASE NO. 67369 APPEAL NO. 84-2701

FIL SID J. Western JUL 22 1925

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Robert C. Hill, Esq. Attorney for Petitioner P.O. Box 1086 2115 Main Street Fort Myers, Florida 33902 (813) 332-2996

#

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court has descretionary jurisdiction in this cause pursuant to Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A) (iv) because the decision of the Second District Court of Appeals in this cause conflicts with the decisions of the First District Court of Appeal in Harms v. State 454 So. 2d 689 (Fla. 1st D.C.A. 1984) and Parker v. State 465 So. 2d 1361 (Fla. 1st D.C.A. 1985).

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

Barry Allen Williams, the Defendant below, shall hereinafter be referred to as "Petitioner". The State of Florida, Plaintiff below, shall be hereinafter be referred as "Respondent". References to the Record on Appeal shall be designated, (R.\_\_)

Petitioner was charged in a three count Information with the crimes of Burglary of a Dwelling, Grand Theft and Grand Theft-Auto. (R.3) On April 4, 1984 Petitioner's court appointed counsel entered a written plea of not guilty to the charges. (R.6)

On May 31st Petitioner entered a plea of guilty to the charges after the reduction of the second count to Petit Theft.(R.7) A Bench Warrant was issued for Petitioner on July 24, 1984 and execution of same was returned on October 10, 1984. (R.28) Petitioner was before the court for sentence on November 13, 1984. The court imposed a sentence of fifteen years as to Count One, Sixty Days concurrent as to Count Two and five years concurrent as to Count Three. (R.29-32)

Petitioner's scoresheet was prepared pursuant to Rule 3.701(C) and was a Category Five scoresheet. (R.44) Pursuant to the scoresheet the Petitioner's presumptive sentence should have been "any non-state prison sanction". The reason given by the court for departing from the guideline sentence was,

"The Defendant was ROR when guilty plea taken and given a sentence date of 20 July 1984 at 2:00 p.m. He did not apear but fled to Texas and was brought back." (R.44)

At the time Petitioner entered his guilty plea it had been with the understanding that he would be sentenced according to the guildelines. (R.10-11) During the course of the plea colloquy the Petitioner was warned by the court that if he failed to appear for sentencing, the court would not be bound by the terms of the plea agreement. (R.20-22) Petitioner failed to

appear for the imposition of sentence. After being apprehended in Texas he was returned to Lee County where he was sentenced on November 13, 1984. Before imposing sentence the court gave the Petitioner the opportunity to explain his failure to appear. Petitioner explained that he had been unable to find employment in Lee County and had gone to Texas to seek employment to support his wife and baby. (R.38)

THE COURT HAS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL RENDERED IN THIS CAUSE.

This Court has the discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal rendered in this cause. The decision of the Second District Court of Appeal affirming the sentence of the Circuit Court of the Twentieth Judicial Circuit was rendered June 19, 1985.

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 9.303(a)(AA)(iv) because the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflicts with the decisions of the First District Court of Appeal in Harms v. State 454 So. 2d 689 (Fla. 1st D.C.A. 1984) and Parker v. State 465 So. 2d 1361 (Fla. 1st D.C.A. 1985) The First District Court of Appeal cases are directly cited in the opinion of the Second District, which attempts to distinguish the Harms and Parker cases but does not do so.

The Second District's opinion attempts to distinguish <u>Harms</u> and <u>Parker</u> on the grounds that those opinions did not suggest that defendant's failure to appear was willful and intentional or otherwise motivated by a desire to secure the application of Rule 3.701.

In the case at bar Petitioner failed to appear for sentencing because he had left the state to find a job to support his wife and baby.

The trial court in <u>Harms</u> found that <u>Harms</u>'s failure to appear was "his own wrongdoing". Yet, the First District used language almost identical to the trial court's in <u>Harms</u> to affirm the excessive sentence for reasons the First District refused to accept. Further, in <u>Harms</u>'s, Footnote 4 to the opinion reveals that the reason for failure to appear was that he had committed two armed burglaries, an attempted armed burglary, an attempted murder and possession of a firearm by a convicted felon, an armed crime spree.

Yet while a vicious, violent armed felon is not considered to have willfully failed to appear in the First District, a man who attempts to support his wife and baby by finding a job is found to have acted so wrongfully that a guideline sentence may be exceeded in the Second District.

This appalling and inequitable result cries out to this court to take jurisdiction of this cause and make the application of the sentencing guidelines uniform in this state.

## CONCLUSION

This Court has discretionary jurisdiction over the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in this cause.