045

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

BARRY ALLAN WILLIAMS,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

Case No. 67,369
Appeal No. 84-2701

FILED
SID...
CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By: [Signature]
Chief Deputy Clerk

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT
ON JURISDICTION

JIM SMITH
ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBERT J. KRAUSS
Assistant Attorney General
1313 Tampa Street, Suite 804
Park Trammell Building
Tampa, Florida 33602
(813) 272-2670

Counsel for Respondent

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner seeks to invoke the jurisdiction of this Court pursuant to Article V. Section III(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(IV).

In this brief, BARRY ALLAN WILLIAMS will be referred to as the "Petitioner" and the STATE OF FLORIDA will be referred to as the "Respondent."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent, the State of Florida, accepts the statement of the case and facts as submitted by Petitioner in his brief on jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Honorable Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case inasmuch as there is no conflict between the instant case and the decisions of the First District Court of Appeal in Harms v. State, 454 So.2d 689 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984) and Parker v. State, 465 So.2d 1361 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985). Both Harms and Parker are distinguishable from the instant cause and, additionally, the trial court sub judice did not solely rely on Petitioner's failure to appear as a reason for departing from the presumptive guideline sentence.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

WHETHER THE DECISION IN WILLIAMS
v. STATE, So.2d (Fla. 2d DCA
1983), CASE NO. 84-201, OPINION
FILED JUNE 19, 1985 [10 F.L.W.
1543], IS AN EXPRESS AND DIRECT
CONFLICT WITH HARMS v. STATE,
454 So.2d 689 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984),
AND PARKER v. STATE, 465 So.2d
1361 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985).

In its decision below, the Florida District Court of Appeal, Second District, expressly ruled that Petitioner's reliance upon the decisions rendered by the First District Court of Appeal in Harms v. State, 454 So.2d 689 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984), and Parker v. State, 465 So.2d 1361 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985), was clearly misplaced. Inasmuch as the decisions in Harms and Parker are materially distinguishable from the instant cause, this Court should not exercise its discretionary jurisdiction where no conflict among decisions appears.

In Harms, supra, the court held that a defendant's failure to appear for a scheduled sentencing upon revocation of probation did not constitute forfeiture or waiver of the right to affirmatively select to be sentenced pursuant to the guidelines. Harms had pled guilty in 1982 to a charge of dealing in stolen property and his probation was revoked. Because the sentencing did not take place until after the effective date of the guidelines, Harms had the option to affirmatively select to be sentenced pursuant to the guidelines. The court held that because the rule expressly provided that the defendant had the

option to select the guidelines, failure to appear at a prior sentencing did not operate as a forfeiture or waiver of the right to elect the guidelines. Also, the court determined that the trial court could not depart from the guidelines solely because of the defendant's failure to appear because that "would permit the trial court to do indirectly, by deviation, what he cannot do directly by denying election of the rules initially based solely on a prior failure to appear." (Harms, Id. at 690) Thus, the court in Harms was concerned with the ability of the defendant to affirmatively select conditions of sentence in accordance with the guidelines and does not deal with the situation presented to the Second District below, that is, whether the failure to appear at a scheduled sentencing hearing is sufficient reason for departure from the guidelines where the trial court has expressly warned the Appellant that such a result would insue upon failure to appear.

In Parker, supra, the court observed in footnote 2 that in Parker and in Harms the records did not suggest that the defendant's failure to appear was willful and intentional or otherwise motivated by a desire to secure the application of the Rule 3.701 sentencing guidelines. Sub judice, however, the record affirmatively reflects that Petitioner willfully and intentionally failed to appear for sentencing.

Perhaps the most significant reason for asserting that there is no conflict among the above cited cases is the fact that Petitioner was not sentenced solely because he had failed to appear.


Specifically, Petitioner's agreement to appear at sentencing was one of the conditions of his plea, a condition which was breached when Petitioner willfully and intentionally failed to appear. Thus, as Judge Schoonover opined, where a defendant, as a condition of the acceptance of his plea, agrees to a departure from the presumptive guidelines sentence in the event he fails to appear for sentencing, the trial court may validly depart from the guidelines when that defendant willfully fails to appear. There is no conflict between the instant case and Harms and Parker.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing and in the absence of any express and direct conflict, this Honorable Court should decline to accept jurisdiction of the above styled cause.